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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Fort Leflore is located on Point Leflore, an eighty-acre, roughly triangular tract in
Leflore County, Mississippi, at which the confluence of the Yalobusa and Tallahatchie
rivers forms the Yazoo River. Bordered by the Yalobusha on the west, the Yazoo on the
south, and the Illinois Central Gulf Railroad tracks on the east, Point Leflore rises but
slightly above the surrounding typically flat Mississippi Delta terrain, barely escaping
flooding during moderately high water and invaribly inundated when the rivers reach flood
stage. The walls of Fort Leflorewere erected on the western tip of Point Leflore, where
the point forms a peninsulalike protrusion against the Yalobusha,in March, 1863, by
Confederate soldiers of the Thirty-fifth Mississippi Infantry Regiment. The fortification,
which is L-shaped, consists of a west wall running north to south, and a north wall running
east to west, with the two walls forming a northwest corner. The west wall measures
approximately 225 feet long, 2 to 3 feet high, 12 feet thick at the base, and has a parapet
width of 5 feet. The north wall measures approx1mately 300 feet long, 3 to 4 feet high,

and has base and parapet measurements c&rrespondlng to those of the west wall. The
relatlvely low height and wide crest of the earthen walls ‘suggest that cotton ‘bales were
probably stacked atop the walls to add necessary height for protection, much as cotton

bales are known to have been used for that purpose at nearby Fort Pemberton, a similar
fortification.

Today the earthen walls, now grown over with trees, are the only apparent remnant of the
Confederate occupation of the site. No structures or visible foundations remain to indicate
the location and purpose of buildings reputed to have existed during the point's use as a
river landing before the Civil War. It is in fact doubtful that many, if indeed any, of
the structures still stood in 1863 when the Confederates built their fortification.
Moreover, the ex1stence of cultural debrls, scattered on the surface from many years of
cultivation, makes it impossible to plot accurately the locations of structures without
extensive archaeological investigation. Five large pecan trees growing on the Yazoo

River (or south) side of Point Leflore were possibly planted by early inhabitants of the
site, the irregular spacing of the trees perhaps suggesting that other trees were once
planted. Since its abandonment by the Confederates, Point Leflore has been in cultivationm,
soybeans recently having replaced cotton as the principal crop.
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Located on Point Leflore, where the confluence of the Tallahatchie and Yalobusha rivers
forms the Yazoo, Fort Leflore is among the best extant examples of several small earthen
fortifications ereé¢ted during the Civil War by Confederate troops along the river system
in the vicinity of Greenwood, Mississippi, to contest the passage of the Federal Western
Squadron during the Yazoo Pass expedition in the spring of 1863. Point Leflore was
selected by the Confederates as a fortlflcatlon site because of its natural barrier to
land attack provided by rivers surroundlng the point on three sides. The strategic fort
was built on the site of antebellum Point Leflore, a river landlng once owned by famous
Choctaw chief Greenwood Leflore. Leflore obtained the parcel of land bearing his name as
part of a vast land grant awarded him for his cooperation in effecting the Treaty of
Dancing Rabbit Creek in September, 1830, soon after which he became a wealthy planter.
Reputedly a disagreement with the owner of nearby Williams Landing prompted Leflore to
establish his landing, where he hoped to handle the business of other cotton shippers as
well as his own and thereby to drive his nemesis out of business. Despite his considerable
investment in the landing, however, Leflore's goals were not realized, probably because he
devoted most of his time to leading the social life of a wealthy planter instead of handling
business at his landing. Leflore served in the Mississippi House of Representatives in
1835, and in the Senate from 1840 to 1845. By 1854 Leflore had apparently lost all
interest in his landing, and spent his time building his imposing house,Malmaison, some
ten miles from his landing. By 1861, when the Civil War began, Point Leflore was no
longer a productive enterprise.

On March 11, 1863, Federal troops of Maj.Gen. Ulysses S. Grant cut the levee at Moon Lake
on the Mississippi River in order to flood and render navigable the abandoned waterway of
Yazoo Pass in an effort to move troops to an area north of Vicksburg. To counter Grant's
offensive, Confederate authorities ordered defensives built at strategic locations around
Greenwood. The fortification built on Point Leflore was constructed by the Thirty-fifth
Mississippi Infantry Regiment and a section of artillery. During the engagement centered
around Fort Pemberton, the largest of the area fortifications, located on a narrow strip
of land west of Greenwood between the Tallahatchie and Yazoo rivers, Fort Leflore saw
little action. Pvt. John A, Wilson of Mississippi wrote his wife: '"Our pickets meet the
Yankee pickets and talk., They propose to trade whiskey and coffee for tobacco, so you
see that the picketts [sic] are friendly" (Jackson, Mississippi Department of Archives and
History, manuscript collection). Wilson also in his letter expressed anxiety over the
inundation caused by the broken levee at Moon Lake, writing that the Confederates were
camped "in a low wet place & have to drink river watter [sic]" (Ibid.). (Apparently the
buildings of the old cotton landing at Point Leflore were no longer standing in 1863, or
the garrison would doubtless have utilized them.) The detente Pvt. Wilson mentioned was
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8 - SIGNIFICANCE

short-lived, however. On April 2 a Federal reconnaissance scouting for a means of over-
taking the Confederate forts so as to allow passage of the Federal fleet skirmished briefly
with Confederate soldiers in a field west of the Yalobusha River near Fort Leflore. Two
days later the U. S. First Missouri Light Artillery fired thirteen rounds at the fort.

The gunners in Fort Leflore returned the fire with six-pounder caseshot, which were reported
as doing "little execution" (Princeton, Diary of Lt. Junius W. MacMurray, entries of

April 2, 4, 1863, in John Van Antwerp MacMurray papers).

The fort's walls remain as a vestige of the hastily erected earthworks that denied a
Federal fleet passage down the Yazoo River to Vicksburg. Had it not been for strategic
defenses such as Fort Leflore there would have been no battles further south in Mississippi
at Port Gibson, Raymond, Jackson, Champion Hill, and Big Black River; and Vicksburg would
have capitulated with little resistance. The success of the Confederates near Greenwood
may have prolonged the conflict for four months by tying up the Federal army a whole summer.
The Confederate fortification at Point Leflore was far from insignifican;,despite the fact
that it was not the scene of a major conflict.
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